
 

 

1 

 

Becker County Planning Commission  1 

May 11th, 2021 2 

 3 

Members Present:  Chairman Dave Blomseth, County Commissioner Larry Knutson, Jeff 4 

Moritz, Mary Seaberg, Harvey Aho, Tommy Ailie, Kohl Skalin, Bob Merritt, Ray 5 

Thorkildson and Zoning Director Kyle Vareberg. Remote: Brian Bestge. Absent: Chuck 6 

Collins 7 

  8 

Chairman Dave Blomseth called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:20 pm.  9 

Introductions were given. Becker County Zoning Tech. Jeff Rusness recorded the minutes. 10 

 11 

Mary Seaberg made a motion to approve the minutes from the April 13, 2021 meeting. 12 

Jeff Moritz second. All members in favor. Motion carried.   13 

 14 

Chairman Dave Blomseth explained the protocol for the meeting and stated that the 15 

recommendations of the Planning Commission would be forwarded to the County Board 16 

of Commissioners for final action.  17 

 18 

 19 

New Business: 20 

 21 

1. APPLICANT: Lloyd B & Eunice I Gunderson 29075 US Hwy 10 Detroit Lakes, MN 22 

56501 Project Location: 29075 US Hwy 10 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL LAND 23 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID number: 03.0074.000 Section 07 Township 138 Range 040; PT 24 

LOTS 3&4 BEG 150' E OF SW COR SEC TH E 459' N 687.1' NW 1153.8' AL HWY TO 25 

TWP RD S 334' E 121' & S 1321' TO BEG EX 1.17 AC. Tax ID number: 03.0075.000 26 

Section 07 Township 138 Range 040; PT LOTS 3&4 BEG 609' E 687.1' N & 1153.8' NW 27 

OF SW SEC COR TH S 334' E TO HWY#10 & NW AL HWY TO BEG APPLICATION AND 28 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Change of Zone from Residential to 29 

Commercial. 30 

 31 

Lucinda.Liebelt, Lloyd Gunderson’s Daughter, presented the application. 32 

 33 

Blomseth asked Liebelt what are the proposed plans are for the property? 34 

 35 

Liebelt explained, they just want to get it rezoned to be more saleable because the 36 

property will eventually be sold. Liebelt added it is mostly commercial out in that part of 37 

the Highway 10 corridor. 38 

 39 

Paul Renner spoke about the application, he asked if there was a specific plan for 40 

changing the zoning or is just for resale purposes. 41 

 42 

Liebelt stated, it is just for resale purposes. 43 

  44 



 

 

2 

 

Renner stated that he was not for or against the application, he just wanted to know 45 

more specifics on the project, because he plans to build a house on the adjacent lot. 46 

 47 

Liebelt stated it is just for resale purposes. 48 

 49 

Kate Hagerty-Pennick stated her concern about the change of zone without indicating 50 

what the property will be used for. Hagerty-Pennick asked, would the new buyer be able 51 

to put whatever they want out there or would they have to go back to the County Board 52 

to get approval. 53 

  54 

Blomseth explained, they could do whatever fits within the Becker County Ordinance on 55 

commercial property.  56 

 57 

Blomseth stated there is a difference between Commercial and Industrial Zoning. 58 

 59 

Hagerty-Pennick stated her concerns about homes on the adjacent property, living next 60 

to a gas station for example. Hagerty-Pennick also stated concerns about tax increases 61 

in the area if the rezoning goes through. Hagerty-Pennick stated she feels this request is 62 

too vague and premature to rezone this property without having any specific indications 63 

on what the intension is for the property. 64 

 65 

Testimony Closed 66 

 67 

Thorkildson asked, what would be the criteria be for the use of this commercial 68 

property? 69 

 70 

Blomseth ask Vareberg what the commercial property can be used for. 71 

 72 

Vareberg read the ordinance on commercial use to the Board. Vareberg explained it 73 

would be basically retail sales.  74 

 75 

Knutson stated to the Blomseth, the tax on the use would not affect the neighboring 76 

property taxes.  77 

 78 

Vareberg read two opposing letters. Letters are on file in the Becker County Zoning 79 

Office. 80 

 81 

Blomseth opened the matter for discussion by the Board. The Board discussed. All in favor.  82 

 83 

MOTION: Thorkildson motioned to accept the application as submitted; Skalin second. All in 84 

favor. Motion carried. 85 

 86 



 

 

3 

 

2. APPLICANT: Smokey Resort LLC 100 N Gould St Redwood Falls, MN 56283; Tyler & Erika 87 

Johanning 605 4th St W Park Rapids, MN 56470 Project Location: 53014 St Hwy 34 Osage, 88 

MN 56570 LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION: Tax ID number: 05.0144.001 Section 25 Township 89 

140 Range 037; NE1/4 N of HWY 34 Tax ID number: 21.0302.010 Section 30 Township 140 90 

Range 036; 30-140-36 PT GOVT LOT 1: N OF LN PARALLEL AND 250' N OF FOLLOWING LN: 91 

BEG N QTR COR, S 517.2', SW 2450.6' AND TERM. APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF 92 

PROJECT: Request a Change of Zone for 21.0302.010 from Agricultural to Commercial and 93 

request a Conditional Use Permit for 49 units or sites for a non-shoreland multi-unit 94 

development.  95 

 96 

Surveyor, Brad Nyberg presented the application. 97 

 98 

Nyberg said they are developing 63 acres of non-shoreland and are proposing 49 seasonal sites. 99 

The sites will typically be 40’x50’ to allow for room for average RV sizes of 12x40. The total 100 

impervious area will be approximately 7%. Nyberg stated all the roads on the drawing will be 101 

private and be maintained by the resort. The water and sewer will be on a common system. 102 

 103 

Seaberg asked if the roads on the north side of the drawing will come out to an existing road. 104 

 105 

Nyberg explained that they do come out to an existing road, however the layout is kind of a 106 

guideline. 107 

 108 

Seaberg asked if there is a guideline on how wide the roads will be. 109 

 110 

Vareberg explained the roads within the campground need to be 14 ft for one-way and 24ft for 111 

two-way. 112 

 113 

Seaberg asked if the application was reviewed by the Township officials.  114 

 115 

Vareberg replied, yes, both Osage and Carsonville Townships had no issues. Vareberg added 116 

that is part of the Tech Panel Board’s process. 117 

 118 

Ailie asked if there is adequate parking for each site? Nyberg replied that there is room for two 119 

cars per site. 120 

 121 

Seaberg asked if they are promoting the ATV factor within the campground? 122 

 123 

Lasage, Authorized Agent for Smokey Resort LLC, stated they will not be promoting ATV rentals 124 

within the park. Lasage added the existing buildings would contain restaurants, convention 125 

centers and promoting and renting 4 wheelers and side by sides. 126 

 127 



 

 

4 

 

Knutson stated that they can do that because, that is on a different parcel, which is already 128 

zoned commercial. 129 

 130 

Seaberg noted they received several letters with deep concerns about ATV traffic. Seaberg 131 

explained we are here just for the commercial zone and a CUP RV Park request.  132 

 133 

Lasage stated, that is the way I would look at it, it would be no different than R&R Rental, who 134 

rent four wheelers and side by sides. 135 

 136 

Bill Eckberg asked how many letters were going to be read? 137 

 138 

Vareberg replied ten letters adding he will read them all.  139 

 140 

Cheryl Breitbach spoke against the application, Breitbach stated concerns about the amount of 141 

ATV’s traveling through the area already. Breitbach stated her concern about her grandchildren 142 

using these roads for walking and riding bikes the old fashion way, riding horses in the fall and 143 

hayrides. Breitbach noted how dry it is right now and expressed worry about the hills starting on 144 

fire. She stated her main concern is safety.  145 

 146 

Ron Tate spoke against the application. Tate stated concern about the water table and noted 147 

concern about increase dust from the road due to ATV use, adding it will only get worse with 148 

that many more ATV’s coming through. Tate Stated neighbors that live in the area have to suffer 149 

because of it. 150 

 151 

Vareberg read ten opposing letters. Letters are on file in the Becker County Zoning Office.  152 

 153 

Testimony Closed 154 

 155 

Vareberg read the following letters into record: 156 

 157 



 

 

5 

 

 158 
 159 

 160 



 

 

6 

 

 161 

 162 

 163 



 

 

7 

 

 164 



 

 

8 

 

 165 



 

 

9 

 

 166 



 

 

10 

 

 167 
 168 

Thorkildson asked Lasage if there are four wheelers coming into the existing area for parking. 169 

 170 

Lasage replied the parking area is just reopening now and is not sure what transpired the past. 171 

 172 

Lasage stated the ATV traffic is a different issue. Lasage stated he does not know how it could be 173 

regulated out there besides enforcing the existing ATV laws. 174 

 175 

Thorkildson asked if they would have stipulations in the RV Park for the number of ATVs 176 

allowed. 177 

 178 

Lasage stated if you wanted to put a stipulation on the RV Park, they would be ok with it 179 

however, there is more than just the RV Park in the area. They cannot regulate outside ATV 180 

traffic. 181 

 182 

Thorkildson noted his concerned about the number of RV sites, noting he does not think he 183 

cannot support this application. 184 

 185 

Knutson ask Lasage how many RV units are at Bambi’s Resort. Lasage said 49 units. 186 

 187 

Knutson asked how many ATV’s are at the campground. Lasage replied 50. 188 



 

 

11 

 

 189 

Knutson described where he lives in proximity to Bambi’s Resort adding he has no 190 

problem with the ATV traffic by his house. 191 

 192 

Seaberg asked Lasage if he had regulations for Bambi’s Resort? Lasage replied no. 193 

 194 

Knutson explained how Bambi’s Resort came in with 49 RV sites and a marina and there 195 

is no more activity than prior to the addition. Knutson used this as an analogy for a 196 

gentleman in the audience. 197 

  198 

Skalin explained what is in the zoning criteria and what information he must use to 199 

make his decision on. 200 

 201 

Merritt asked what the conditional use guidelines for non-shoreland are, and what is the 202 

number of potential sites allowed on that parcel. Vareberg explained the density 203 

calculation. 204 

 205 

Ailie stated having a home base for the ATVs to come back to would be a good thing and 206 

help with trash issues out on the trails. 207 

 208 

The Board talked among themselves.  209 

 210 

Kyle read the Townships approval letters. Letters are on file in the Becker County Zoning 211 

Office.  212 

 213 

Kyle read the findings. Findings are on file in the Becker County Zoning Office.  214 

 215 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approved CUP with based on the following criteria: 216 

 217 

1.  Effect on surrounding property. That the conditional use will not harm the 218 

use and  219 

enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already 220 

permitted, nor substantially diminish or impair property values within the 221 

immediate vicinity.  222 

  223 

The proposal is located in a commercial district. A commercial district allows a 224 

planned unit development if handled by a conditional use permit. The existing 225 

adjacent parcel which will be combined with one parcel in the request is currently 226 

used as a planned unit development/resort. The Commission finds through 227 

compliance with the Becker County Zoning Ordinance and all of its criteria the use 228 

and enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity will not be infringed upon. 229 

This will be ensured by the significant amount of land in the development, the 230 

parcels being heavily wooded to naturally screen the property, and other rules 231 



 

 

12 

 

established by the applicant. No evidence has been provided to this Commission to 232 

prove any fact for the potential to impair property values in the immediate vicinity. 233 

 234 

 235 

2. Effect on orderly, consistent development. That establishing the conditional 236 

use will not impede the normal, orderly development and improvement of 237 

surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.  238 

  239 

Land surrounding the proposal is predominately wooded with very few occupants, 240 

limiting any potential effects. All required criteria of the Becker County Zoning 241 

Ordinance have been met or exceeded to prevent any potential to impede or prevent 242 

normal, orderly development and improvements of surrounding vacant property for 243 

uses predominant in the area. 244 

 245 

 246 

 247 

 248 

3.  Adequate facilities. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other 249 

necessary facilities have been or are being provided.  250 

 Required utilities, roads, and all necessary facilities will be provided. All 251 

drainage will be created to the recommendation of Becker County Soil and Water 252 

and an approved storm water pollution prevention plan. The Minnesota Pollution 253 

Control Agency and Minnesota Department of Health guidelines will also be 254 

followed and incorporated into the multi-unit development. 255 

            256 

    257 

 258 

4. Adequate parking. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to 259 

provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed  260 

A minimum of two parking spaces shall be provided for each RV unit, any 261 

additional parking may overflow to the common space provided on the 262 

survey. 263 

 264 

5. Not a nuisance. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent 265 

or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration, so none of these 266 

will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights so that 267 

no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.  268 

  269 



 

 

13 

 

The proposal is not expected to produce any nuisance odors, fumes, or 270 

vibration. Multiple acres of heavily wooded land surround the proposal 271 

creating an extensive natural buffer from all neighboring properties. 272 

Nuisance dust and noise is not expected in the park and any traffic outside of 273 

the park will need to follow state law. 274 

 275 

6. Additional criteria for shoreland areas. In Shoreland areas, it shall be found 276 

that adequate measures have been or will be taken to assure that:  277 

a. Pollution. Soil erosion or other possible pollution of public waters will 278 

be prevented, both during and after construction 279 

 280 

N/A 281 

b. View from public waters. That the visibility of structures and other 282 

facilities as viewed from public waters will be limited;  283 

 284 

N/A 285 

 286 

c. Adequate utilities. That the site is adequate for water supply and on-287 

site sewage treatment; and  288 

  289 

N/A 290 

Watercraft. That the types, uses, and number of watercrafts that the project will 291 

generate can be safely accommodated.  292 

 293 

N/A 294 

 295 

Ailie Second. Roll Call. In Favor: Jeff Moritz, Mary Seaberg, Harvey Aho, Tommy Ailie, 296 

Kohl Skalin, and Brian Bestge. Opposed: Bob Meritt and Ray Thorkildson 297 

 298 

Motion carried. 299 

 300 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approve change of zone as submitted; Second by Aho  301 

 302 

In Favor were Jeff Moritz, Mary Seaberg, Harvey Aho, Tommy Ailie, Kohl Skalin, and 303 

Brian Bestge (Remotely). 304 

 305 

Opposed were Merritt and Thorkildson.    306 

 307 

Motion carried. 308 

       309 



 

 

14 

 

Other Business: 310 

 311 

I) Tentative Date for Next Informational Meeting: June 2nd, 2021; 8:00 am; 3rd Floor 312 

Meeting Room in the Becker County Courthouse, Detroit Lakes, MN. 313 

 314 

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Merritt made a motion 315 

to adjourn. Aho second. All in favor. Motion carried.  The meeting adjourned.  316 

 317 

________________________________                ________________________________ 318 

David Blomseth, Chairman               Jeff Moritz, Secretary 319 

 320 

ATTEST 321 

 322 

      _______________________________________ 323 

          Kyle Vareberg, Zoning Administrator  324 


